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Adani Ennore Container Terminal Private Limited

Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023

` in Lacs

Particulars Notes
As at 

March 31, 2023

As at 

March 31, 2022

ASSETS

Non-Current Assets

 Property, Plant and Equipment 3(a) 65,740.24                         67,263.54                       

 Right of Use Assets 3(b) 6,870.53                           7,198.48                         

 Capital Work-in-Progress 3(d) 1,726.73                             1,134.31                           

 Intangible Assets 3(c) 5.05                                   12.33                                

 Financial Assets

(i)  Investments 4 0.66                                   0.66                                

 Other Non-Current Assets 7 2,362.63                            1,511.08                           

76,705.84                       77,120.40                      

Current Assets 

Inventories 8 88.01                                 82.82                               

Financial Assets

(i)   Trade Receivables 5 751.35                                2,989.27                         

(ii)  Cash and Cash Equivalents 9 279.68                               78.59                               

(iii) Other Financial Assets 6 129.52                               69.64                              

Other Current Assets 7 2,648.42                           2,639.23                         

3,896.98                         5,859.55                       

Total Assets 80,602.82                      82,979.95                     

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

EQUITY

Equity Share Capital 10 31,500.00                         19,200.00                      

Other Equity 11 14,580.94                         17,076.95                        

Total Equity 46,080.94                      36,276.95                     

LIABILITIES 

Non-Current Liabilities

Financial Liabilities

(i) Borrowings 12 19,622.20                         34,400.96                      

(ii) Lease Liabilities 13 8,213.38                            8,054.53                         

27,835.58                       42,455.49                     

Current Liabilities

Financial Liabilities

(i) Borrowings 12 -                                     -                                   

(ii) Lease Liabilities 13 400.54                              380.86                            

(iii) Trade and other payables

a)Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 17 5.26                                   71.39                                

b)Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and 

small enterprises 17 2,019.16                            1,731.05                           

(iv)  Other Financial Liabilities 14 3,881.67                            1,793.65                          

Other Current Liabilities 15 374.90                              265.75                             

Provisions 16 4.77                                    4.81                                 

6,686.30                        4,247.51                        

Total Liabilities 34,521.88                       46,703.00                    

Total Equity and Liabilities 80,602.82                      82,979.95                     

The accompanying notes form an integral part of financial statements

As per our report of even date

For Dharmesh Parikh & Co. LLP For and on behalf of Board of Directors of

Chartered Accountants Adani Ennore Container Terminal Private Limited

Firm Registration No.: 112054W/ W100725

Harsh Parikh Capt Unmesh Abhyankar Jai Khurana

Partner Director Managing Director

Membership No. 194284 DIN: 03040812 DIN: 05140233

Subash Sahoo Darshita Prajapati

Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Place: Ahmedabad Place: Ahmedabad

Date: May 01, 2023 Date: May 01, 2023



Adani Ennore Container Terminal Private Limited

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2023

` in Lacs

For the year ended 

March 31, 2023

For the year ended 

March 31, 2022

INCOME

Revenue from Operations 18 18,480.01                        17,916.79                          

Other income 19 20.73                                4.84                                  

Total income 18,500.74                      17,921.63                       

EXPENSES

Operating Expenses 20 12,180.80                        10,175.94                         

Employee Benefits Expense 21 89.75                               149.13                               

Finance Costs

           Interest and Bank Charges 22 3,139.13                           3,450.09                          

Depreciation and Amortization Expense 3 4,482.92                         4,421.40                          

Foreign Exchange Loss (net) 0.16                                  0.13                                  

Other Expenses 23 1,051.78                           928.94                             

Total Expenses 20,944.54                     19,125.63                       

Loss before exceptional items and tax (2,443.80)                      (1,204.00)                      

(Less) :- Exceptional items (refer note 38) -                                   (219.66)                            

Loss before Tax (2,443.80)                      (1,423.66)                       

Tax Expenses: 24

Current Tax 3.19                                  6.03                                 

Total Tax Expenses 3.19                                6.03                                

Loss for the year (A) (2,446.99)                      (1,429.69)                       

Other Comprehensive Income

Item that will not be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods:

Re-measurement gains on defined benefit plans (net of tax) 0.38                                 0.30                                 

Total other comprehensive income (net of tax) (B) 0.38                               0.30                               

Total Comprehensive Loss for the year (A+B) (2,446.61)                       (1,429.39)                       

Earnings per Share - (Face value of ` 10 each)

Basic and Diluted (in `) 27 (1.25)                               (0.74)                              

The accompanying notes form an integral part of financial statements

As per our report of even date

For Dharmesh Parikh & Co. LLP For and on behalf of Board of Directors of

Chartered Accountants Adani Ennore Container Terminal Private Limited

Firm Registration No.: 112054W/ W100725

Harsh Parikh Capt Unmesh Abhyankar Jai Khurana

Partner Director Managing Director

Membership No. 194284 DIN: 03040812 DIN: 05140233

Subash Sahoo Darshita Prajapati

Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Place: Ahmedabad Place: Ahmedabad

Date: May 01, 2023 Date: May 01, 2023

NotesParticulars



Adani Ennore Container Terminal Private Limited

Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended March 31, 2023

` in Lacs

Reserves and 

Surplus

Retained 

Earnings

Balance as at April 01, 2021 19,200.00           50,000.00             (31,493.66)               37,706.34     

Loss for the year -                       -                          (1,429.69)                 (1,429.69)     

Other Comprehensive Income for the year -                       -                          0.30                          0.30              

Total Comprehensive Loss for the year -                       -                          (1,429.39)                 (1,429.39)      

Balance as at March 31, 2022 19,200.00          50,000.00           (32,923.05)             36,276.95    

Shares issued during the year 12,300.00           -                          -                           12,300.00    

Share issue expenses -                       -                          (49.40)                      (49.40)          

Loss for the year -                       -                          (2,446.99)                (2,446.99)     

Other Comprehensive Income for the year -                       -                          0.38                          0.38              

Total Comprehensive Loss for the year -                      -                          (2,446.61)                (2,446.61)    

Balance as at March 31, 2023 31,500.00          50,000.00           (35,419.06)             46,080.94  

The accompanying notes form an integral part of financial statements

As per our report of even date

For Dharmesh Parikh & Co. LLP For and on behalf of Board of Directors of

Chartered Accountants Adani Ennore Container Terminal Private Limited

Firm Registration No.: 112054W/ W100725

Harsh Parikh Capt Unmesh Abhyankar Jai Khurana

Partner Director Managing Director

Membership No. 194284 DIN: 03040812 DIN: 05140233

Subash Sahoo Darshita Prajapati

Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Place: Ahmedabad Place: Ahmedabad

Date: May 01, 2023 Date: May 01, 2023

Particulars
Equity Share

Capital
Total

Other Equity

Equity Component 

of Perpetual Debt



Adani Ennore Container Terminal Private Limited

Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended March 31, 2023

 ` in Lacs

Particulars
For the year ended 

March 31, 2023

For the year ended 

March 31, 2022

Cash Flows from Operating Activities

Loss before tax for the year (2,443.80)                        (1,423.66)                   

Adjustments for:

Derecognition of SEIS Receivables -                                    219.66                        

Assets written off 2.82                                  -                             

Excess provision written back -                                    (1.07)                           

Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses 4,482.92                          4,421.40                     

Interest Income (12.27)                                -                             

Interest Expense 3,081.24                          3,370.15                     

Loss on Foreign Exchange Fluctuation (net) 0.16                                  0.13                            

Provision for doubtful advances (net) 1.39                                   -                             

Operating Profit before Working Capital Changes 5,112.46                         6,586.61                  

Adjustments for:

(Increase)/Decrease in Trade Receivables 2,237.92                           (499.52)                      

Increase in Inventories (5.19)                                 (28.86)                        

Increase in Financial Assets (59.88)                              (10.37)                         

Decrease in Other Assets 4.30                                  743.46                       

Increase in Trade Payables 221.83                              71.61                           

Increase/(Decrease) in Other Liabilities 109.49                             (132.45)                       

Increase in Financial Liabilities 873.43                              192.30                        

Cash generated from Operations 8,494.36                        6,922.78                  

Direct Taxes Paid (Net of Refunds) (845.30)                            (198.25)                      

Net Cash generated from Operating Activities (A) 7,649.06                        6,724.53                   

Cash Flows from Investing Activities

(2,948.35)                         (162.85)                      

Interest Received 12.27                                 -                             

Net Cash used in Investing Activities (B) (2,936.08)                      (162.85)                     

Cash Flows from Financing Activities

Proceeds from Inter-Corporate Deposit (Non-Current) 11,870.00                        8,706.45                    

Repayment of Inter-Corporate Deposit (Non-Current) (26,648.76)                      (12,134.99)                  

Proceeds from issuance of Equity Shares 12,300.00                        -                             

Cost of issuance of equity shares (49.40)                              -                             

Repayment of Lease liabilities (455.96)                            (456.81)                      

Interest Paid (1,527.77)                           (2,946.52)                   

Net Cash used in Financing Activities (C) (4,511.89)                       (6,831.87)                 

Net Increase/(Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents (A + B + C) 201.09                             (270.19)                       

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the year (refer note 9) 78.59                                348.78                       

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the year (refer note 9) 279.68                           78.59                        

Component of Cash and Cash Equivalents

Balances with Scheduled Banks

In Current Accounts 279.68                             78.59                          

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the year 279.68                           78.59                        

The accompanying notes form an integral part of financial statements

As per our report of even date

For Dharmesh Parikh & Co. LLP For and on behalf of Board of Directors of

Chartered Accountants Adani Ennore Container Terminal Private Limited

Firm Registration No.: 112054W/ W100725

Harsh Parikh Capt Unmesh Abhyankar Jai Khurana

Partner Director Managing Director

Membership No. 194284 DIN: 03040812 DIN: 05140233

Subash Sahoo Darshita Prajapati

Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Place: Ahmedabad Place: Ahmedabad

Date: May 01, 2023 Date: May 01, 2023

1) The Statement of Cash Flows has been prepared under the Indirect method as set out in Ind AS 7 on Statements of Cash Flows notified under 

section 133 of The Companies Act, 2013, read together with paragraph 7 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standard) Rules 2015 (as amended).

2) Disclosure with regards to changes in liabilities arising from Financing activities as set out in Ind AS 7 - Statement of Cash Flows is presented 

under note 36.

Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment (Including Capital Work-in-Progress, Capital Creditors 

and Capital Advances)



Adani Ennore Container Terminal Private Limited

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

1 Corporate information

2 Basis of preparation

2.1

2.2 Summary of significant accounting policies

a) Current versus non-current classification

 - Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle; or

 - Held primarily for the purpose of trading; or

 - Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

All other assets are classified as non-current. 

A liability is current when:

 - It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle; or

 - It is held primarily for the purpose of trading; or

 - It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or 

 - There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current.

b) Inventories

c)  Cash and cash equivalents

d)  Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE)

Adani Ennore Container Terminal Private Limited (‘'the Company’' or "AECTPL") having CIN-U61200GJ2014PTC078795 was incorporated on

February 18, 2014 as a 100% subsidiary of Adani Ports and Special Economic Zone Limited. The Company has objective to develop and

operate Container Terminal(s) near Ennore at Tamilnadu. The Company has been awarded letter of award dated February 14, 2014 for the

above project from Kamarajar Port Limited duly approved by the Union Government. The registered office of the company is located at

"Adani Corporate House", Shantigram, Near Vaishnodevi Circle, S.G.Highway, Khodiyar, Ahmedabad-382421, Gujarat. The Company has

commenced commercial operations from February 28, 2018.  

The financial statements of the Company has been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under the

Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended from time to time.
Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a newly-issued accounting standard is initially adopted or a revision to an

existing accounting standard requires a change in accounting policy as mentioned in note 2.2(t) hitherto in use.

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification. An asset is treated as current

when it is:

- Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting

period.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents. The

Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle.

Stores and Spares: 

- Project work in progress comprise specific contract costs and other directly attributable overheads including borrowing costs which can

be  allocated on specific contract cost is, valued at lower of cost and net realisable value

- Valued at lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost is determined on a moving weighted average basis. Cost of stores and spares lying in

bonded warehouse includes custom duty accounted for on an accrual basis.

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the following assets and liabilities which have been

measured at fair value or revalued amount: 

-Derivative financial instruments, 

-Defined Benefit Plans – Plan Assets measured at fair value; and 

-Certain financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value (refer accounting policy regarding financial instruments).

The Financial Statements were authorised for issue in accordance with resolution of directors on May 01, 2023.

 - Stores and Spares which do not meet the definition of property, plant and equipment are accounted as inventories.

 - Costs incurred that relate to future contract activities are recognised as ”Project Work in Progress”.

In addition, the financial statements are presented in INR and all values are rounded to the nearest lacs (INR 00,000), except when

otherwise indicated.

Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an original maturity of

three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits, as defined above, net of

outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of the company's cash management.

Property Plant and Equipment (‘PPE’) is measured on initial recognition at cost net of taxes/ duties, credits availed, if any, and subsequently

carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. The cost of PPE includes interest on borrowings

directly attributable to acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets. Machinery spares that meet the definition of PPE are

capitalised and depreciated over the useful life of the principal item of asset. Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only if it is probable

that the future economic benefits will flow to the Company. When significant parts of plant and equipment are required to be replaced at

intervals, The Company depreciates them separately based on their specific useful lives. Likewise, when a major inspection is performed, its

cost is recognised in the carrying amount of the plant and equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied. All other

repair and maintenance costs are recognised in the statement of profit and loss as incurred. 

 - Net Realizable Value in respect of store and spares is the estimated current procurement price in the ordinary course of the business.



Adani Ennore Container Terminal Private Limited

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

e)  Intangible assets

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as finite as per the below table.

A summary of the policies applied to the Company’s intangible assets is as follows:

Method of Amortisation

Software on straight line basis

f)  Revenue Recognition

Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets as prescribed under Part C of Schedule II of

the Companies Act 2013 except for the assets mentioned below for which useful lives estimated by the management. The identified

component of fixed assets are depreciated over their useful lives and the remaining components are depreciated over the life of the

principal assets. The management believes that these estimated useful lives are realistic and reflect fair approximation of the period over

which the assets are likely to be used.

The Company has estimated the following useful lives to provide depreciation on its certain fixed assets based on assessment made by 

expert and management.

An item of property, plant and equipment covered under Concession agreement, sub-concession agreement and supplementary concession

agreement, shall be transferred to and shall vest in Grantor (government authorities) at the end of respective concession agreement. In

cases, where the Company is expected to receive consideration of residual value of property from grantor at the end of concession period,

the residual value of contracted property is considered as the carrying value at the end of concession period based on depreciation rates as

per management estimate/Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013 and in other cases it is Nil.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no future

economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference

between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is

derecognised.

The Company adjusts exchange differences arising on translation difference/settlement of long term foreign currency monetary items

outstanding in the Indian GAAP financial statements for the period ending immediately before the beginning of the first Ind AS financial

statements i.e. March 31, 2016 and pertaining to the acquisition of a depreciable asset to the cost of asset and depreciates the same over

the remaining life of the asset. The depreciation on such foreign exchange difference is recognised from first day of the financial year.

Borrowing cost relating to acquisition / construction of Property, Plant and Equipment which take substantial period of time to get ready for

its intended use are also included in the cost of PPE to the extent they relate to the period till such assets are ready to be put to use.

Category Assets

Revenue from port operation services including Container handling, storage are recognised on proportionate completion method basis based

on services completed till reporting date. Revenue is recognised based on the actual service provided to the end of reporting period as a

proportion of total services to be provided. The amount recognised as a revenue is exclusive of indirect taxes where applicable.

5 Years or useful life whichever is less

20 Years

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of the goods or services are transferred to the customer at an amount

that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the

carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is derecognised.

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in a business

combination is their fair value at the date of acquisition. Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any

accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses. Internally generated intangibles, excluding capitalised development costs,

are not capitalised and the related expenditure is reflected in statement of profit and loss in the period in which the expenditure is incurred.

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication

that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful

life are reviewed at least at the end of each reporting period. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of

future economic benefits embodied in the asset are considered to modify the amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and are treated

as changes in accounting estimates. The amortisation expense on intangible assets with finite lives is recognised in the statement of profit

and loss unless such expenditure forms part of carrying value of another asset.

Intangible assets

Marine Structures Pneumatic Fender 10 Years

Estimated Useful Life

The specific recognition criteria described below must also be met before revenue is recognised.

Port Operation Services

Estimated Useful Life

Marine Structures Marine Structure 30 Years 

Lease Hold Land /Lease hold 

Land Development

Plant & Machinery RMQC

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each financial year end and 

adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

Leasehold land/Leasehold land development Over the balance period of Concession Agreement. 



Adani Ennore Container Terminal Private Limited

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

Interest Income

g)  

h) Foreign currency transactions:

Transactions and balances

In respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and interests in joint ventures,

deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future

and taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

-When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a

transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or

loss.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that

sufficient future taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilized. Unrecognized deferred tax assets

are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognized to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow

the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

In cases, where the contracts include multiple contract obligations, the transaction price will be allocated to each performance obligation

based on the standalone selling prices. Where these prices are not directly observable, they are estimated based on expected cost plus

margin.

Income Taxes

Income tax expense comprises current tax expense and the net change in the deferred tax asset or liability during the year. Current and

deferred taxes are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss, except when they relate to items that are recognised in other comprehensive

income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in

equity, respectively.

Current tax

For all financial assets measured either at amortized cost or at fair value through other comprehensive income, interest income is recorded

using the effective interest rate (EIR). EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments or receipts over the

expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset or to the

amortized cost of a financial liability. When calculating the effective interest rate, the Company estimates the expected cash flows by

considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment, extension, call and similar options) but does not

consider the expected credit losses. Interest income is included in finance income in the statement of profit and loss.

Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet approach on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their

carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date. 

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences, except:

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from 'profit before tax' as reported in the statement

of profit and loss because of items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or

deductible. The Company's current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the

reporting period.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts and there

is an intention to settle the asset and the liability on a net basis.

Deferred tax

The Company’s financial statements are presented in INR, which is functional currency of the Company. The Company determines the

functional currency and items included in the financial statements are measured using that functional currency. However, for practical

reasons, the Company uses an average rate if the average approximates the actual rate at the date of transaction.

-When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business

combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss.

In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments In subsidiaries, associates and interests in joint ventures, when the

timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse In the

foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and any unused tax

losses. Deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible

temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilized, except:

Deferred tax relating to items recognized outside the statement of profit and loss is recognized outside the statement of profit and loss

(either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items are recognized in correlation to the underlying transaction either in

OCI or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is realized or the

liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

The Company recognizes tax credits in the nature of Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) credit as an asset only to the extent that there is

sufficient taxable temporary difference /convincing evidence that the Company will pay normal income tax during the specified period, i.e.,

the period for which tax credit is allowed to be carried forward. In the year in which the Company recognizes tax credits as an asset, the said

asset is created by way of tax credit to the statement of profit and loss. The Company reviews the such tax credit asset at each reporting

date and writes down the asset to the extent the Company does not have sufficient taxable temporary difference /convincing evidence that

it will pay normal tax during the specified period. Deferred tax includes MAT tax credit.

Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded at the exchange rate prevailing on the date of transaction.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency spot rates of exchange at the

reporting date. 



Adani Ennore Container Terminal Private Limited

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

i) Retirement and Other Employee Benefits

> Net interest expense or income

j) Borrowing Costs

k) Segment Reporting

l) Leases

The Company as a lessee

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the dates

of the initial transactions.

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or asset. The Company recognises the following 

changes in the net defined benefit obligation as an expense in the statement of profit and loss:

> Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on curtailments and non-routine settlements; and 

iii) Compensated Absences :- Accumulated leave, which is expected to be utilised within the next twelve months, is treated as short term

employee benefits. The company measures the expected cost of such absence as the additional amount that is expected to pay as a result

of the unused estimate that has accumulated at the reporting date. The Company treats accumulated leave expected to be carried forward

beyond twelve months as long term compensated absences which are provided for based on actuarial valuation as at the end of the period.

The actuarial valuation is done as per projected unit credit method. The Company presents the entire leave as a current liability in the

balance sheet, since it does not have an unconditional right to defer it’s settlement for twelve month after the reporting date.

ii) Defined benefit plan :The Company operates a defined benefit gratuity plan in India, which requires contributions to be made to a

separately administered fund. The cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit plan is actuarially determined using the projected

unit credit method.

The Company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and leases of low-value

assets. The Company recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying

assets.

iv) Short term employee benefits :- They are recognised at an undiscounted amount in the Statement of Profit and Loss for the year in

which the related services are received.

The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the contract conveys the right to control

the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

In accordance with the Ind-As 108 -" Operating Segments" , the Company is primarily engaged in the business of developing, operating and

maintaining Container Terminal. Since there are no other business segments in which the Company operates, there are no other primary

reportable segments. Therefore, the segment revenue, results, segment assets, segment liabilities, total cost incurred to acquire segment

assets, depreciation charge are all as is reflected in the financial statement.

Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in statement of profit and loss with the

exceptions for which  below treatment is given as per the option availed under Ind AS 101:

Borrowing costs are interest and other ancillary costs incurred in connection with the arrangement of borrowings. Borrowing costs directly

attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its

intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of the asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they

occur. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing costs

also includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing costs.

Re-measurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding amounts included in net interest on

the net defined benefit liability and the return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit

liability), are recognised immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through OCI in the

period in which they occur. Re-measurements are not reclassified to the statement of profit and loss in subsequent periods.

i) Defined contribution plan : Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. The Company has no

obligation, other than the contribution payable to the provident fund. The Company recognises contribution payable to the provident fund

scheme as an expense, when an employee renders the related service. If the contribution payable to the scheme for service received before

the balance sheet date exceeds the contribution already paid, the deficit payable to the scheme is recognised as a liability after deducting

the contribution already paid. 

The Chief Operational Decision Maker monitors the operating results of its business Segments separately for the purpose of making

decisions about resource allocation and performance assessment. Segment performance is evaluated based on profit or loss and is

measured consistently with profit or loss in the financial statements.

Set out below are the new accounting policies of the Company upon adoption of Ind AS 116:

i. Exchange differences arising on long-term foreign currency monetary items related to acquisition of a property, plant and equipment

(including funds used for projects work in progress) recognised in the Indian GAAP financial statements for the period ending immediately

before the beginning of the first Ind AS financial reporting period i.e. March 31, 2016 are capitalised / decapitalised to cost of Property,

Plant and Equipment and depreciated over the remaining useful life of the asset.

ii. Exchange differences arising on other outstanding long term foreign currency monetary items recognised in the Indian GAAP financial

statements for the period ending immediately before the beginning of the first Ind AS financial reporting period i.e. March 31, 2016 were

accumulated in the “Foreign Currency Monetary Item Translation Difference Account” (FCMITDA) and were amortised over the remaining

life of the concerned monetary item or financial year 2019-20 whichever is earlier.



Adani Ennore Container Terminal Private Limited

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

i) Right-of-use assets

ii) Lease liabilities

iii) Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

m) Earnings per share

n) Impairment of non-financial assets

o)

The Company recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date the underlying asset is available for use).

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of

lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease

payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-

line basis over the shorter of the lease term and the estimated useful lives of the asset. 

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the company at the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise of a purchase option,

depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful life of the asset. The right-of-use assets are also subject to impairment. Refer the

accounting policy for impairment of non-financial assets.

A provision is recognised when the Company has a present obligation as a result of past events and it is probable that an outflow of

resources will be required to settle the obligation, in respect of which a reliable estimate of the amount can be made. Provisions are

determined based on best estimate required to settle the obligation at the Balance Sheet date. When a provision is measured using the cash

flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows (when the effect of the time

value of the money is material). The increase in the provisions due to passage of time is recognised as interest expense. Provisions are

reviewed as at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognises lease liabilities measured at the present value of lease payments to be

made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments (including in substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives

receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees.

The lease payments also include the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably certain to be exercised by the Company and payments of

penalties for terminating a lease, if the lease term reflects the Company exercising the option to terminate. The variable lease payments

that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as expense in the period in which the event or condition that triggers the payment

occurs.

Basic EPS is computed by diving the profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of ordinary

equity shares outstanding during the year. Diluted EPS is computed by adjusting the profit and loss attributable to equity shareholders and

the weighted average number of all equity shares outstanding for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases (i.e., those leases that have a lease term of 12

months or less from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase option). It also applies the lease of low-value assets recognition

exemption that are considered to be low value. Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised as

expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement date

because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is

increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is

remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a change in the lease payments (e.g., changes to future payments resulting 

from a change in an index or rate used to determine such lease payments) or a change in the assessment of an option to purchase the

underlying asset.

Provisions (other than employee benefits), Contingent liabilities and Contingent assets

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for impairment annually as at year end at the CGU level, as appropriate, and when 

circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be impaired.

Impairment losses of continuing operations, including impairment on inventories, are recognised in the statement of profit and loss, except

for properties previously revalued with the revaluation surplus taken to OCI. For such properties, the impairment is recognised in OCI up to

the amount of any previous revaluation surplus.

The Company bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations, which are prepared separately for each of the

company’s CGUs to which the individual assets are allocated. These budgets and forecast calculations generally cover a period of five years.

For longer periods, a long-term growth rate is calculated and applied to project future cash flows after the fifth year.

The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any indication exists, or

when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, The Company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable

amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s (CGU) fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. Recoverable amount

is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other

assets or group of assets. When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired

and is written down to its recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects

current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal,

recent market transactions are taken into account. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. These

calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded companies or other available fair value

indicators.
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p)

q) Fair value measurement

>   In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
>   In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

>   Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities 

r) Financial instruments 

Financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

At each reporting date, the Company analyses the movements in the values of assets and liabilities which are required to be remeasured or

re-assessed as per the company’s accounting policies. For this analysis, the Company verifies the major inputs applied in the latest valuation

by agreeing the information in the valuation computation to contracts and other relevant documents.

The Company, in conjunction with the Company’s external valuers, also compares the change in the fair value of each asset and liability with

relevant external sources to determine whether the change is reasonable on a yearly basis.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the fair value

hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure

fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs.

>  Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or indirectly

observable

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of 

another entity.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market

participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or

transfer the liability takes place either:

Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the existence of which will be confirmed

only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company or a present

obligation that arises from past events where it is either not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle or a reliable

estimate of the amount cannot be made. Contingent assets are not disclosed in the financial statements unless an inflow of economic

benefits is probable. Contingent assets are not disclosed in the financial statements unless an inflow of economic benefits is probable.

Government grants

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or

liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

>   Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company determines whether transfers

have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair

value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

The Company's Management determines the policies and procedures for both recurring fair value measurement, such as derivative

instruments and unquoted financial assets measured at fair value.

External valuers are involved for valuation of unquoted financial assets and financial liabilities, such as contingent consideration.

Involvement of external valuers is decided upon annually by the Management. Selection criteria includes market knowledge, reputation,

independence and whether professional standards are maintained. The Management decides, after discussions with the Company’s external

valuers, which valuation techniques and inputs to use for each case.

All financial assets, except trade receivables, are recognised initially at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the

acquisition or issue of financial assets, that are not at fair value through profit or loss, are added to the fair value on initial recognition.

Regular way purchase and sale of financial assets are accounted for at trade date. The Company's financial assets include Investments,

Trade Receivable, Cash and Cash Equivalent and Other Financial Assets.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the nature,

characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.

The Company measures financial instruments, such as, derivatives at fair value at each balance sheet date.

Government grants and subsidies are recognised when there is reasonable assurance that the Company will comply with the conditions

attached to them and the grants and subsidies will be received. Government grants whose primary condition is that the Company should

purchase, construct or otherwise acquire non-current assets are recognised as deferred revenue in the Balance sheet and transferred to

profit and loss on systematic and rational basis over the useful lives of the related asset or by deducting the grant from carrying amount of

assets. Other government grants and subsidies are recognised as income over the periods necessary to match them with the costs which

they are intended to compensate on a systematic basis. Export benefits available under prevalent schemes are accrued in the year in which

the goods are exported and there is no uncertainty in receiving the same.
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Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:

> Debt instruments at amortised cost

> Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

> Debt instruments, derivatives and equity instruments at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL)

> Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

Debt instruments at amortised cost

A ‘debt instrument’ is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:

(a) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows, and

Debt instrument at FVTPL

Derecognition

> The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

Impairment of financial assets

b) Financial assets that are debt instruments and are measured as at other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

The Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on:

> Trade receivables or contract revenue receivables; and

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

In addition, the Company may elect to designate a debt instrument, which otherwise meets amortised cost or FVTOCI criteria, as at FVTPL.

However, such election is allowed only if doing so reduces or eliminates a measurement or recognition inconsistency (referred to as

‘accounting mismatch’). The Company has not designated any debt instrument as at FVTPL.

a) Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortised cost e.g. loans, debt securities, deposits, trade receivables and 

bank balances

c) Trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset that result from transactions that are within the 

scope of Ind AS 115

(b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the

principal amount outstanding.

This category is the most relevant to the Company. After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised

cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on

acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in finance income in the profit and loss.

The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the statement of profit and loss. This category generally applies to trade and other

receivables.

FVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument, which does not meet the criteria for categorisation as at amortised

cost or as FVTOCI, is classified as at FVTPL.

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company determines that whether there has been a

significant increase in the credit risk said initial recognition. If credit risk has not increased significantly, 12 month ECL is used to provide for

impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used.

ECL is the difference between all contracted cash flows that are due to the Company in accordance with the contract and all the cashflows

that the Company expects to receive, discounted at the original EIR. ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognised during the

period is recognised as income / (expense) in the statement of profit and loss (P&L). This amount is reflected under the head " Other

Expense" in the statement of profit and loss. 

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable

transaction costs. The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings, lease liability and other

financial liability.

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e.

removed from the Company’s  balance sheet) when:

Under the simplified approach the Company does not track changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance based on

lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from its initial recognition.

> The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows

in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either (a) the Company has transferred substantially

all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the

asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

The Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the following financial assets 

and credit risk exposure ;

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it

evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained

substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the Company continues to recognise the

transferred asset to the extent of the Company’s continuing involvement. In that case, the Company also recognises an associated liability.

The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Company has

retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying

amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Company could be required to repay.

Debt instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognised in the statement of profit and

loss.
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Subsequent measurement

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit and loss

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Loans and borrowings

This category generally applies to borrowings. 

Derecognition

s) Derivative financial instruments

Initial recognition and subsequent measurement

t) New Standards, Interpretations and amendments adopted by the company

2.3

The Company uses derivative financial instruments, such as forward currency contracts, cross currency swaps, options, interest rate futures

and interest rate swaps to hedge its foreign currency risks and interest rate risks, respectively. Such derivative financial instruments are

initially recognised at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL) on the date on which a derivative contract is entered into and are

subsequently re-measured at fair value. Derivatives are carried as financial assets when the fair value is positive and as financial liabilities

when the fair value is negative.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit and loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities designated upon

initial recognition as at fair value through profit and loss. Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the

purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This category also includes derivative financial instruments entered into by the Company that are

not designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined by Ind AS 109.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit and loss are designated as such at the initial date of

recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind AS 109 are satisfied. For liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair value gains/ losses attributable to

changes in own credit risk are recognised in OCI. These gains/loss are not subsequently transferred to the statement of profit and loss.

However, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity. All other changes in fair value of such liability are recognised

in the statement of profit and loss. The Company has not designated any financial liability as at FVTPL.

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing financial

liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially

modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The

difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

This is the category most relevant to the Company. After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently

measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised in the statement of profit and loss when the liabilities

are derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation process. 

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the 

EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss.

Significant accounting estimates and assumptions 

The preparation of the financial statements requires management to make estimates, assumptions and judgments that affect the reported

balances of assets and liabilities and disclosures as at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of income and

expense for the periods presented. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are

considered relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates considering different assumptions and conditions.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of derivative financial instrument are recognised in the statement of profit and

loss and reported with foreign exchange gains/(loss) not within results from operating activities. Changes in fair value and gains/(losses) on

settlement of foreign currency derivative financial instruments relating to borrowings, which have not been designated as hedge are

recorded as finance expense.

The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the financial statements are consistent with those followed in the preparation of the

Company’s annual financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022, except for amendments to the existing Indian Accounting

Standards (Ind AS). The Company has not early adopted any other standard, interpretation or amendment that has been issued but is not yet

effective. The Company applies, for the accounting periods beginning on or after 1 April 2022, that do not have material impact on the

financial statements of the Company.

3. Subsidiary as a first-time adopter of Ind AS  (Ind AS 101, First-time Adoption of Indian Accounting Standards)

If a subsidiary, joint venture of associate (together termed as subsidiary) adopts Ind AS later than its parent and applies paragraph D16(a) of

Ind AS 101, then the subsidiary may elect to measure cumulative translation differences for all foreign operations at amounts included in the

consolidated financial statements of the parent, based on the parent’s date of transitions to Ind AS.

1. Accounting for proceeds before intended use (Ind AS 16, Property, Plant and Equipment)

The excess of net sale proceeds of items produced over the cost of testing, if any, should not be recognised in the statement of profit or loss

but deducted from the directly attributable costs considered as part of cost of an item of Property, Plant and Equipment.

2. Determining costs to fulfil a contract (Ind AS 37, Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets)

The 2022 amendments clarify the types of costs a company can include as the ‘costs of fulfilling a contract’ while assessing whether a

contract is onerous as under:

• The incremental costs of fulfilling that contract and an allocation of other costs that relate directly to fulfilling contracts. 
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(ii) Fair value measurement of financial instruments

(iii) Provision for Decommissioning Liabilities 

(iv) Taxes

(v) Contingent Liabilities not provided for 

The management of the Company has estimated that there is no probable liability pertaining to delay in Phase II project as explained in note 

37.

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be measured based on quoted prices in

active markets, their fair value is measured using valuation techniques including the DCF model. The inputs to these models are taken from

observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgment is required in establishing fair values. Judgments

include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the

reported fair value of financial instruments. Refer note 25 for further disclosures.

Estimates and Assumptions

Deferred tax (including MAT Credits) assets are recognised for unused tax credits to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be

available against which the credits can be utilised. Significant management judgment is required to determine the amount of deferred tax

assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable profits together with future tax planning

strategies. Further details on taxes are disclosed in note 24.

The management of the Company has estimated that there is no probable decommissioning liability under the condition / terms of the 

concession agreement with the Kamarajar Port Limited.

The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying values of assets and liabilities

within the next financial year are discussed below:

(i) Useful lives of Property, plant and equipment (‘PPE’) 

The Management reviews the estimated useful lives and residual value of PPE at the end of each reporting period. The factors such as

changes in the expected level of usage, number of shifts of production, technological developments and product life cycle, could

significantly impact the economic useful lives and the residual values of these assets. Consequently, the future depreciation charge could

be revised and thereby could have an impact on the profit of the future years. The estimated useful lives of Property, plant and equipment

are described in note 2.2(d).

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Impact on account of revisions to accounting estimates are

recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised and future periods are affected.
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Note 3(a) - Property, Plant and Equipment 

 ` in Lacs

Building 
Computer 

Hardware

Leasehold Land 

Development
Office Equipments

Plant & 

Equipment

Furniture & 

Fixtures
Vehicles

Marine 

Structures
Total

Cost

As at April 1, 2021 10,440.13    637.18 229.34                   111.54 56847.02 120.63               644.72               14,790.43          83,820.99      

Additions 16.89             105.32 -                           3.75 77.81 -                      -                       -                       203.77              

Deductions/Adjustment -                -                          -                           -                          -                    -                      -                      -                      -                   

As at March 31, 2022 10,457.02     742.50                   229.34                    115.29                    56,924.83        120.63               644.72               14,790.43          84,024.76      

Additions 21.46              3.68                         -                            15.42                        102.70               1.96                      2,482.00             -                       2,627.22          

Deductions/Adjustment -                (1.69)                        -                           (3.86)                       (1.31)                   (2.40)                   -                      -                      (9.26)                

As at March 31, 2023 10,478.48    744.49                   229.34                    126.85                   57,026.22        120.19                3,126.72             14,790.43          86,642.72       

Accumulated Depreciation

As at April 1, 2021 1,078.57       440.87                   23.65                      70.64                     9,740.89          39.43                 237.27                1,044.09            12,675.41        

Depreciation for the year 359.33           90.03                      7.66                          17.89                        3,157.86            12.06                   81.57                    359.41                 4,085.81          

Deductions/Adjustment -                -                          -                           -                          -                    -                      -                      -                      -                   

As at March 31, 2022 1,437.90       530.90                  31.31                       88.53                     12,898.75        51.49                  318.84               1,403.50            16,761.22        

Depreciation for the year 362.18           90.86                      7.66                          16.57                        3,164.10            12.06                   134.97                 359.41                 4,147.81           

Deductions/Adjustment -                (1.69)                        -                           (2.82)                       (0.64)                 (1.40)                    -                      -                      (6.55)                

As at March 31, 2023 1,800.08      620.07                   38.97                      102.28                   16,062.21         62.15                  453.81               1,762.91             20,902.48      

Net Block

As at March 31, 2023 8,678.40      124.42                   190.37                    24.57                      40,964.01       58.04                 2,672.91             13,027.52           65,740.24       

As at March 31, 2022 9,019.12        211.60                     198.03                      26.76                       44,026.08        69.14                   325.88                13,386.93           67,263.54       

Notes:

1) Refer note 40 for impairment evaluation and conclusion.

Particulars

Property, Plant and Equipment
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Note 3(b) - Right of Use Assets
` in Lacs

Leasehold Land Total

Cost

As at April 01, 2021 8,138.02             8,138.02          

Additions -                      -                  

As at March 31, 2022 8,138.02            8,138.02        

Additions -                      -                  

As at March 31, 2023 8,138.02            8,138.02        

Accumulated Depreciation

As at April 01, 2021 611.58                 611.58             
Depreciation for the year 327.96                327.96             

As at March 31, 2022 939.54               939.54           
Depreciation for the year 327.95                 327.95             

As at March 31, 2023 1,267.49             1,267.49         

Net Block

As at March 31, 2023 6,870.53            6,870.53        

As at March 31, 2022 7,198.48            7,198.48         

Note:

Note 3(c) - Intangible Assets
` in Lacs

Software Total

Cost

As at April 01, 2021 32.31                   32.31                

Additions 5.62                     5.62                 

Deductions/Adjustment -                      -                  

As at March 31, 2022 37.93                  37.93              

Additions -                      -                   

Deductions/Adjustment (0.16)                    (0.16)                

As at March 31, 2023 37.77                   37.77               

Accumulated Amortisation

As at April 01, 2021 17.97                    17.97                
Amortisation for the year 7.63                      7.63                 

Deductions/Adjustment -                       -                  

As at March 31, 2022 25.60                 25.60              
Amortisation for the year 7.16                     7.16                  

Deductions/Adjustment (0.04)                   (0.04)               

As at March 31, 2023 32.72                  32.72               

Net Block

As at March 31, 2023 5.05                   5.05                

As at March 31, 2022 12.33                  12.33               

1) Right of Use assets is accounted at a lease rate mentioned in the concession agreement dated 15th March, 2014 entered between the Company

and Kamarajar Port Limited (“KPL”). During the current year and previous year, the Company has received incremental lease claims (in addition to

lease rental as per concession agreement dated 15th March 2014) from KPL. However, considering guidelines from Ministry of Shipping, the

Company is of the view that incremental lease claim by KPL is not payable and hence not considered while accounting Leases as per Ind AS 116 as

at 31st March 2023 and 31st March 2022 respectively. (refer note 37)

Right of Use Assets
Particulars

Particulars
Intangible Assets
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Note 3(d) - Capital Work in Progress

Particulars  ` in Lacs

As at March 31, 2023 1,726.73           

As at March 31, 2022 1,134.31           

Capital Work-in-Progress (CWIP) movement

 ` in Lacs

March 31, 

2023

March 31, 

2022

1,134.31          1,161.92             

3,219.63         182.73               

(2,627.21)        (210.34)              

1,726.73         1,134.31            

Capital Work-in-Progress (CWIP) Ageing as on March 31, 2023 is as below:

 ` in Lacs

Less than 1 

year
1-2 years 2-3 years

More than 3 

years

Projects in progress (refer note 37) 641.40            33.27                765.43          286.63           1,726.73             

Total 641.40           33.27               765.43         286.63          1,726.73           

Capital Work-in-Progress (CWIP) Ageing as on March 31, 2022 is as below:

 ` in Lacs

Less than 1 

year
1-2 years 2-3 years

More than 3 

years

Projects in progress (refer note 37) 82.16               765.54             286.61          -                  1,134.31             

Total 82.16              765.54            286.61         -                 1,134.31            

Closing Balance

Particulars

Opening Balance

Additions

Capitalised during the year

CWIP

Amount in CWIP for a period of

Total

CWIP

Amount in CWIP for a period of

Total
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4 Investments March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

 ` in Lacs  ` in Lacs

Non Current

0.66                     0.66                        

0.66                   0.66                      

0.66                     0.66                        

-                       -                          

-                       -                          

0.66                   0.66                      

5 Trade Receivables March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

 ` in Lacs  ` in Lacs

806.35                3,044.27                 

1.39                      -                          

807.74                 3,044.27                 

(56.39)                  (55.00)                    

751.35                 2,989.27               

Notes:

Trade receivable ageing schedule for March 31, 2023 is as below  ` in Lacs

Less than 6 

months

6 Months - 1 

year
1-2 Years 2-3 Years

More than 3 

years

1 Undisputed 

Trade 

receivables - 

Considered 

good

625.68      178.33                  1.80                    0.47                    0.07                      -                       806.35                   

2 Undisputed 

Trade 

receivables - 

Credit impaired

-            -                       0.02                    0.83                    0.52                      0.02                     1.39                         

625.68     178.33                1.82                   1.30                   0.59                    0.02                    807.74                  

Allowance for 

expected 

credit loss due 

to increase in 

credit risk

-            -                       -                      -                      -                        -                       (56.39)                    

Total 625.68     178.33                1.82                   1.30                   0.59                    0.02                    751.35                   

Trade receivable ageing schedule for March 31, 2022 is as below  ` in Lacs

Less than 6 

months

6 Months - 1 

year
1-2 Years 2-3 Years

More than 3 

years

1 Undisputed 

Trade 

receivables - 

Considered 

good

1,838.32    1,175.05               27.79                   3.09                    0.02                      -                       3,044.27                 

1,838.32   1,175.05             27.79                 3.09                  0.02                    -                     3,044.27               

Allowance for 

expected 

credit loss due 

to increase in 

credit risk

-            -                       -                      -                      -                        -                       (55.00)                    

Total 1,838.32   1,175.05             27.79                 3.09                  0.02                    -                     2,989.27               

Investment in equity shares of TCP Limited

Unquoted equity shares

Investments at fair value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVTOCI)

Reconciliation of Fair value measurement of the investment in unquoted equity shares

Opening Balance 

Investment made during the year 

Add : Fair value Gain /(Loss) recognised in Other Comprehensive Income 

Closing Balance 

Current

Unsecured, unless stated otherwise

Considered Good

Less: Allowance for expected credit loss (''ECL'')

Credit Impaired

a) No trade receivable are due from directors or other officers of the Company either severally or jointly with any other person; nor any trade or

other receivable are due from firms or private companies in which any director is a partner,  a director or a member.

b) Generally, as per credit terms trade receivable are collectable within 30-180 days although the Company provide extended credit period

considering business and commercial arrangements with the customers including with the related parties.

Sr 

No
Particulars Not Due

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Total

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Sr No Particulars TotalNot Due
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6 Other  Financial Assets

Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

` in Lacs ` in Lacs  ` in Lacs  ` in Lacs

-                      -                        106.22                 47.75                       

-                      -                        0.27                      0.27                        

-                      -                        22.88                   21.47                       

-                      -                        0.15                      0.15                         

-                    -                      129.52                69.64                    

7 Other Assets

Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

` in Lacs ` in Lacs  ` in Lacs  ` in Lacs

24.32                  -                        -                       -                          

29.79                  44.67                    38.64                   37.22                       

1,000.00            1,000.00              2,016.27               2,270.55                 

1,308.52             466.41                  -                       -                          

-                      -                        573.27                  320.71                     

-                      -                        20.24                   10.75                       

2,362.63           1,511.08              2,648.42            2,639.23               

8 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

 ` in Lacs  ` in Lacs

Stores and spares 88.01                   82.82                      

88.01                 82.82                    

9 Cash and Cash Equivalents March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

 ` in Lacs  ` in Lacs

279.68                 78.59                      

279.68               78.59                    

10 Equity Share Capital March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

 ` in Lacs  ` in Lacs

Authorised share capital

31,500.00           25,000.00             

31,500.00          25,000.00            

Issued, subscribed and fully paid up share capital

31,500.00           19,200.00              

31,500.00          19,200.00            

Notes:

(a) Reconciliation of the number of the shares outstanding at the beginning and end of the year:

No.  ` in Lacs No.  ` in Lacs

19,20,00,000    19,200.00            19,20,00,000     19,200.00              

12,30,00,000    12,300.00            -                       -                          

31,50,00,000   31,500.00           19,20,00,000    19,200.00            

Non Trade receivable

Non-current portion

Gratuity Assets

Advances to employees

Capital Advances (Unsecured, considered good)

Prepaid Expenses

Balance with Government Authorities (refer note (a) below)

Notes:

Add: Issued during the year

Taxes recoverable (net)

Outstanding at the end of the year

Security and other deposits (unsecured, considered good)

Non-current portion

Advances to suppliers, Unsecured, considered good 

Contract Assets (refer note (b) below)

Balance in current accounts

Balances with banks:

31,50,00,000 (previous year 25,00,00,000) Equity Shares of ` 10 each

31,50,00,000 (previous year 19,20,00,000) fully paid up Equity Shares of ` 10 each

At the beginning of the year

Current portion

Current portion

(b) Contract assets are the right to consideration in exchange for goods and services transferred to the customer. Contract assets are initially

recognised for revenue earned from port operation services as receipt of consideration is conditional on successful completion of services. Upon

completion of services and acceptance by the customer, the amounts recognised as contract assets are reclassified to Trade Receivables. 

Inventories (At lower of Weighted Average Cost or Net realisable Value)

(a) Balance with Government Authorities includes ` 1,000 lacs paid to Kamarajar Port Limited (“KPL”) as a deposit for the ongoing arbitration. (refer

note 37)

March 31, 2022March 31, 2023
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(b) Terms/rights attached to equity shares:

(c) Shares held by parent company

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

 ` in Lacs  ` in Lacs

31,500.00           19,200.00              

(d) Details of shareholder holding more than 5% shares in the Company

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Nos. 31,50,00,000      19,20,00,000        

% Holding 100.00% 100.00%

(e) Details of Equity Shares held by the Promoter and Promoter Group at the end of the year

As at March 31, 2023

Sr. 

No.

No of Shares at 

the end of the 

year

 % of total 

shares 

 % Change 

during the year 

1 31,50,00,000     100.00% -                           

As at March 31, 2022

Sr. 

No.

No of Shares at 

the end of the 

year

 % of total 

shares 

 % Change 

during the year 

1 19,20,00,000     100.00% -                           

11 Other Equity March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

 ` in Lacs  ` in Lacs

Retained Earnings

(32,923.05)          (31,493.66)             

(2,446.99)            (1,429.69)               

0.38                     0.30                        

(49.40)                 -                          

(35,419.06)         (32,923.05)            

Perpetual Debt March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

 ` in Lacs  ` in Lacs

50,000.00          50,000.00             

-                       -                          

50,000.00         50,000.00           

Total Other Equity 14,580.94          17,076.95             

Closing Balance

At the beginning of the year

Add: Changes during the year 

Add: Re-measurement gains on defined benefit plans

31,50,00,000 equity shares (Previous year 19,20,00,000) of ` 10 each

Opening Balance

Add: Loss during the year

Note: This loan is perpetual in nature with no fixed maturity or redemption period and is payable only at the option of the company. This loan from

Adani Ports and Special Economic Zone Limited, the parent company carries coupon of upto 7.50 % but payable only at the option of the Company.

As this loan is perpetual in nature and the Company does not have any redemption obligation, hence it's classified as equity.

Share issue expenses

At the end of the year

(i) The company has only one class of equity shares having par value of ` 10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share.

Note: The portion of profits not distributed among the shareholders are termed as retained earnings. The Company may utilize the retained

earnings for making investments for future growth and expansion plans, for the purpose of generating higher returns for the shareholders or for

any other specific purpose, as approved by the Board of Directors of the Company.

Particulars

Adani Ports and Special Economic Zone Limited, the parent company and its nominees

Promoter Name

Adani Ports and Special 

Economic Zone Limited, the 

parent company and its 

nominees

Promoter Name

Adani Ports and Special 

Economic Zone Limited, the 

parent company and its 

nominees

Adani Ports and Special Economic Zone Limited, the parent company and its nominees

(ii) In the event of liquidation of the company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the company, after

distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

Out of equity shares issued by the company, shares held by its parent company is as below
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12 Borrowings

Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

` in Lacs ` in Lacs  ` in Lacs  ` in Lacs

19,622.20          34,400.96           -                       -                          

19,622.20         34,400.96          -                     -                        

19,622.20          34,400.96           -                       -                          

Total borrowings 19,622.20         34,400.96          -                     -                        

Notes:

13

Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

` in Lacs ` in Lacs  ` in Lacs  ` in Lacs

              8,213.38 8,054.53              400.54                380.86                   

8,213.38           8,054.53             400.54               380.86                 

Notes:

b) Future minimum lease payments under leases together with the present value of the net minimum lease payments are as follows:

 ` in Lacs

Within one year After one year 

but not later 

than five years

More than five 

years

Total minimum 

lease payments

Less: Amounts 

representing 

finance charges

Present value of 

minimum lease 

payments

 541.14  2,446.12  16,324.40  19,311.66 (10,697.74)  8,613.92

 140.60  549.18  10,007.96  10,697.74  -  - 

 400.54  1,896.94  6,316.44  8,613.92  -  - 

 ` in Lacs

Within one year After one year 

but not later 

than five years

More than five 

years

Total minimum 

lease payments

Less: Amounts 

representing 

finance charges

Present value of 

minimum lease 

payments

 514.76  2,330.26  16,982.16  19,827.18 (11,391.79)  8,435.39

 133.90  523.11  10,734.78  11,391.79  -  - 

 380.86  1,807.15  6,247.38  8,435.39  -  - 

14 Other Financial Liabilities

Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

` in Lacs ` in Lacs  ` in Lacs  ` in Lacs

-                      -                        2,395.38              1,476.39                 

-                      -                        31.47                    22.10                      

-                      -                        359.68                 64.08                     

-                      -                        1,095.14               231.08                    

-                    -                      3,881.67             1,793.65                
Notes:

Deposits from customers

Refund Liability (refer note (a) below)

Interest accrued but not due on borrowings

Finance charge allocated to 

future periods

Non-current portion

Inter Corporate Deposit (Unsecured) (refer note (i) below)

Current portion

Minimum Lease Payments

The above amount includes

Unsecured borrowings

a) The Company has been awarded Port premises land of 2,00,000 Sq Mt and Additional land of 19,780 Sq Mt as part of concession agreement

with Kamarajar Port Limited for a period of 30 years. During the FY 19-20, the company had been awarded additional Port premises land of

1,65,000 Sq Mt as part of concession agreement. Subject to note 3(b)(1), there is no contingent rent, no sub-leases and no restrictions imposed by

the lease arrangement.

(i) Interest on Inter Corporate Deposit (ICD) from Adani Ports and Special Economic Zone Limited, the parent company is chargeable at a rate 7.50%

p.a. (previous year 7.50% p.a.). From total outstanding of ₹ 19,622.20 lacs, ICD to the extent of ₹ 6,863.00 lacs is repayable by March 31, 2025 and

remaining ₹ 12,759.20 lacs is repayable in 13 structured quarterly installments starting from December 31, 2027 and final repayment on December

31, 2030.

(a) A refund liability is the obligation to refund some or all of the consideration received (or receivable) from the customer and is measured at the

amount the Company ultimately expects it will have to return to the customer. The Company updates its estimates of refund liabilities (and the

corresponding change in the transaction price) at the end of each reporting period. Refund liability refers to the volume discount which shall be

payable to the customer after adjusting any outstanding receivable from them.

Particulars

Finance charge allocated to 

future periods

Non-current portion Current portion

Lease Liabilities

Non-current portion Current portion

Particulars

March 31, 2023

Present Value of MLP

Present Value of MLP

March 31, 2022

Minimum Lease Payments

Capital creditors, retention money and other payable

Lease Liabilities (refer note (a) and (b) below)
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15 Other Current Liabilities

Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

` in Lacs ` in Lacs  ` in Lacs  ` in Lacs

Statutory  liabilities -                      -                        195.24                 119.38                     

Contract Liabilities (refer note below) -                      -                        179.66                 146.37                    

-                    -                      374.90               265.75                  

Note:

16 Provisions

Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

` in Lacs ` in Lacs  ` in Lacs  ` in Lacs

-                      -                        -                       -                          

-                      -                        4.77                      4.81                        

-                    -                      4.77                    4.81                       

17  Trade Payables March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

 ` in Lacs  ` in Lacs

5.26                      71.39                       

2,019.16               1,731.05                  

2,024.42            1,802.44               

29.44                   38.36                      

Note:

Trade payable ageing schedule as on March 31, 2023 is as below  ` in Lacs

Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years
More than 3 

years

1 5.26                     -                      -                      -                        -                       5.26                        

2 1,270.98              184.62                8.66                    4.90                      -                       1,469.16                 

3 -                       -                      -                      -                        -                       -                          

4 550.00                -                      -                      -                        -                       550.00                   

1,826.24            184.62              8.66                  4.90                    -                     2,024.42               

Trade payable ageing schedule as on March 31, 2022 is as below  ` in Lacs

Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years
More than 3 

years

1 71.39                    -                      -                      -                        -                       71.39                       

2 1,639.69              85.06                 2.55                    3.75                       -                       1,731.05                  

3 -                       -                      -                      -                        -                       -                          

4 -                       -                      -                      -                        -                       -                          

1,711.08             85.06                2.55                   3.75                     -                     1,802.44               

18 Revenue from Operations March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

 ` in Lacs  ` in Lacs

18,480.01            17,916.79                

-                       -                          

18,480.01          17,916.79              

Note:

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
 ` in Lacs  ` in Lacs

22,970.41           18,603.26             

(4,499.89)            (660.96)                 

9.49                     (25.51)                     

18,480.01          17,916.79              

Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises (refer note 32)

Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises

Provision for gratuity (refer note 31)

Provision for compensated absences

Dues to related parties (refer note 34)

Revenue from Contract with Customers (refer note below)

Income from Port Operations

MSME

Sr 

No
Particulars Not Due

Others

Sr 

No
Particulars

MSME

Total

Disputed dues-MSME

Particulars

Other Operating Income

Reconciliation of revenue recognised with contract price:

Contract Price

Adjustment for:

Refund Liability

Change in value of Contract Assets

Revenue from Contract with Customers

Non-current portion Current portion

Current Contract liabilities include advances received to deliver Port Operation Services and as well as transaction price allocated to unsatisfied

performance obligation in respect of Storage and Dispatch services of Customers’ Container lying at Port.

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Non-current portion Current portion

Total

Others

Disputed dues-MSME

Disputed dues-Others

Total

Not Due

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Disputed dues-Others

Total
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19 Other Income March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

 ` in Lacs  ` in Lacs

12.27                    -                          

-                       -*

-                       1.07                         

8.46                     3.44                        

-                       0.33                        

20.73                  4.84                      

* Figures being nullified on conversion to ` in lacs

20 Operating Expenses March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

 ` in Lacs  ` in Lacs

2,048.83             1,263.69                 

-                       55.00                     

8,808.99             7,674.56                 

1,134.58               1,058.69                

126.62                 85.11                       

61.78                    38.18                      

-                       0.71                         

12,180.80          10,175.94             

21 Employee Benefits Expense March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

 ` in Lacs  ` in Lacs

74.82                   131.28                     

2.72                      5.90                        

(0.28)                    0.33                        

12.49                    11.62                       

89.75                  149.13                   

22 Finance Costs March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

 ` in Lacs  ` in Lacs

2,446.76              2,745.12                  

634.48                625.03                   

57.89                   79.94                      

3,139.13              3,450.09              

23 Other Expenses March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

 ` in Lacs  ` in Lacs

-                       1.25                         

49.86                   45.64                     

12.71                     17.22                       

588.02                452.78                    

7.05                      11.37                        

78.87                    79.19                       

8.95                     38.56                      

197.60                 170.56                    

1.20                      1.20                         

2.82                      -                          

1.39                      -                          

103.31                  111.17                      

1,051.78             928.94                 

Note: 1

Payment to Auditor March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

 ` in Lacs  ` in Lacs

As Auditor:

Audit fee 7.00                     6.22                        

Limited review -                       3.78                        

In other Capacity

Certification Fees 0.05                     1.37                         

7.05                    11.37                      

Office Expenses

Travelling and Conveyance

Directors Sitting Fees

Assets written off

Provision for Doubtful debts

Miscellaneous Expenses

Communication Expenses

Power & Fuel 

Interest on

 -Inter-Corporate Deposits

Insurance 

Other Repairs and Maintenance

Legal and Professional Expenses 

 -Lease Obligation

Bank and other finance charges

Rent

Interest Income on

Note:  

As per Clause 9.2 of the Concession Agreement between the Company and the Kamarajar Port Limited (KPL), the Company being in consideration

of the rights granted to it by the Concession Agreement to develop and operate Container Terminal near Ennore and right to carry out revenue

generating activities is required to share income earned from container terminal operations to KPL at rate stipulated under the concession

agreement and is thereby disclosed as ‘Terminal Royalty Expenses’ in the statement of profit and loss.

Dividend on 

(i) Others

Gratuity Expenses (refer note 31)

Staff Welfare Expenses

Cargo handling / Other charges to sub-contractors

Terminal Royalty Expenses (refer note below)

Scrap sale

Miscellaneous Income

Store & Spares consumed

Contribution to Provident and Other Funds

Customer Claims (including Expected Credit Loss)

Long-term investments

Unclaimed liabilities / excess provision written back

Repairs to Plant & Machinery 

Repairs to Buildings

Salaries, Wages and Bonus

a) Interest and Bank Charges

Payment to Auditors (refer note 1 below)
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24 Income Tax

The major components of income tax expenses for the years ended March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

 ` in Lacs  ` in Lacs

3.19                      6.03                        

3.19                    6.03                      

Note:

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

 ` in Lacs  ` in Lacs
Taxes Recoverable (net) 1,308.52              466.41                    

Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

 ` in Lacs  ` in Lacs

(2,443.80)            (1,423.66)                

26.00% 26.00%

                (635.39)                    (370.15)

635.39                 370.15                    

3.19                      6.03                        

3.19                    6.03                      

-0.13% -0.42%

(d)Deferred Tax (Liability)/Assets (net) March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
 ` in Lacs  ` in Lacs

(18,880.11)         (19,363.33)              

(A) (18,880.11)         (19,363.33)            

25,874.26          25,885.06              

2.16                    2.02                        

1.24                    1.25                         

0.46                   1.09                        

(B) 25,878.12           25,889.42            

Deferred Tax Assets (net) (A+B) 6,998.01            6,526.09              

6,998.01            6,526.09              

Deferred Tax Assets (net) -                     -                        

Note:

Amount

 (` in Lacs)
Expiry Date

                     0.53 2022-23

                   0.53 

Deferred Tax Liability in relation to:

Property, Plant and Equipment

Deferred Tax Assets in relation to:

Unabsorbed Depreciation and losses

Provision for gratuity

Provision for compensated absences

Provision for Bonus

Less:

Deferred Tax Assets not recognised(refer note below)

Income tax expenses reported in statement of profit and loss

Unabsorbed Losses and Depreciation on which Deferred Tax Asset is not created

Adjustment of tax relating to earlier period

Income tax expenses reported in statement of profit and loss

Effective tax rate

Loss Before tax 

Tax Rate

Tax using the Company's domestic rate 

Add/(Less) Tax Effect of:

(c)Reconciliation of tax expenses and the accounting profit multiplied by India's domestic tax rate for March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022

Current income tax:

Current income tax charge

The company has carried forward specified business loss aggregating ` 99,515.86 lacs (previous year ` 99,299.15 lacs) under the Income tax Act,

1961 for which there is no expiry date of its tax credit utilisation by the company. Further, the company has carried forward losses aggregating to ` 

0.53 lacs (previous year ` 0.83 lacs) under the Income tax Act, 1961 which gets expired within 8 years of the respective year.

The carried forward losses will get expired mainly during the years as follows:

Financial Year

2014-15

Total

Pursuant to the Taxation Law (Amendment) Ordinance, 2019 ("Ordinance") issued by Ministry of Law and Justice (Legislative Department) on

September 20, 2019 effective from April 01, 2019, domestic companies have an option to pay Corporate income tax rate at 22% plus applicable

surcharge and cess ("New tax rate") subject to certain conditions. The Company has made an assessment of the impact of the Ordinance and

decided to continue with existing tax structure.

Deferred tax asset has not been recognised in respect of these unabsorbed depreciation and losses aggregating to ` 26,915.42 lacs (previous year

` 25,100.33 lacs) as they may not be used to offset taxable profits of the company in future years and there are no other tax planning opportunities

or other evidences of recoverability in the near future. If the company was able to recognise all unrecognised deferred tax assets, the loss would

reduce by ` 6,998.01 lacs (previous year ` 6,526.09 lacs).

(a)Profit and Loss Section

(b)Balance Sheet Section
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(a) Category-wise Classification of Financial Instruments:

 ` in Lacs

 Fair Value 

through other 

Comprehensive 

Income 

 Fair Value 

through Profit & 

Loss 

 Amortised Cost  Carrying Value 

Investments 4                     0.66 -                        -                       0.66                        

Trade receivables 5 -                      -                        751.35                  751.35                     

Cash and Cash Equivalents 9 -                      -                        279.68                 279.68                    

Other Financial Assets 6 -                      -                        129.52                  129.52                    

0.66                  -                        1,160.55             1,161.21                 

Financial Liabilities

Borrowings 12 -                      -                        19,622.20            19,622.20               

Trade Payables 17 -                      -                        2,024.42              2,024.42                

13 -                      -                        8,613.92              8,613.92                 

14 -                      -                        3,881.67              3,881.67                 

-                      -                      34,142.21           34,142.21              

 ` in Lacs

 Fair Value 

through other 

Comprehensive 

Income 

 Fair Value 

through Profit & 

Loss 

 Amortised Cost  Carrying Value 

4                     0.66 -                        -                       0.66                        

5 -                      -                        2,989.27              2,989.27                 

9 -                      -                        78.59                   78.59                      

6 -                      -                        69.64                   69.64                     

0.66                  -                      3,137.50             3,138.16                

12 -                      -                        34,400.96          34,400.96             

17 -                      -                        1,802.44              1,802.44                

13 -                      -                        8,435.39              8,435.39                

14 -                      -                        1,793.65               1,793.65                 

-                    -                      46,432.44          46,432.44            

(b) Fair Value Measurements

(i) Quantitative disclosures fair value measurement hierarchy for financial assets and financial liabilities

The following table provides the fair value measurement hierarchy of the Company's financial assets and liabilities:

 ` in Lacs

As at March 31, 

2023

As at March 31, 

2022

Significant 

observable 

Inputs(Level 3)

Significant 

observable 

Inputs(Level 3)

0.66                     0.66                        

(ii) Financial Instrument measured at Amortised Cost 

26 Financial Risk Management objective and policies 

Particulars

Investment in unquoted equity investment measured at FVTOCI (refer note 4)

Investments

Trade receivables

Financial Asset

Financial Liabilities

Lease Liabilities

Other Financial Liabilities

Other Financial Liabilities

Trade Payables

As at March 31, 2023

Other Financial Assets

 Refer Note 

Particulars

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Particulars

Financial Asset

As at March 31, 2022

Financial Assets

Lease Liabilities

Financial Instruments, Fair value Measurement, Financial Risk & Capital Management

 Refer Note 

The carrying amount of financial assets and financial liabilities measured at amortised cost in the financial statements are a reasonable

approximation of their fair values since the Company does not anticipate that the carrying amounts would be significantly different from the values

that would eventually be received or settled. 

Borrowings

The Company’s principal financial liabilities, other than derivatives, comprise loans and borrowings and trade and other payables. The main purpose

of these financial liabilities is to finance the Company’s operations/projects. The Company’s principal financial assets include trade and other

receivables, and cash and cash equivalents that derive directly from its operations. The Company also enters into derivative transactions.

The Company’s risk management activities are subject to the management, direction and control of Central Treasury Team of the Adani Group

under the framework of Risk Management Policy for Currency and Interest rate risk as approved by the Board of Directors of the Company. The

Company’s central treasury team ensures appropriate financial risk governance framework for the Company through appropriate policies and

procedures and that financial risks are identified, measured and managed in accordance with the Company’s policies and risk objectives. It is the

Company’s policy that no trading in derivatives for speculative purposes may be undertaken.

In the ordinary course of business, the Company is mainly exposed to risks resulting from exchange rate fluctuation (currency risk), interest rate

movements (interest rate risk) and other price risks such as equity price risk . It manages its exposure to these risks through derivative financial

instruments by hedging transactions. It uses derivative instruments such as foreign currency future options and foreign currency forward contract

to manage these risks. These derivative instruments reduce the impact of both favourable and unfavourable fluctuations.
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 ` in Lacs

For the period 

ended March 31, 

2023

For the year 

ended March 31, 

2022

    1 USD Sensitivity

(2.30)                    -                          

2.30                      -                          

(a) Market risk  

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market

risk comprises interest rate risk and currency risk. Financial instruments affected by market risk include loans and borrowings, deposits, short term

Investments and derivative financial instruments. 

The sensitivity analyses in the following sections relate to the position as at March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022.

The sensitivity analysis have been prepared on the basis that the amount of net debt, the ratio of fixed to floating interest rates of the debt and

derivatives and the proportion of financial instruments in foreign currencies are all constant as at March 31, 2023. The analysis exclude the impact

of movements in market variables on: the carrying values of gratuity and other post-retirement obligations; provisions.

The following assumptions have been made in calculating the sensitivity analyses: 

- The sensitivity of the relevant profit or loss item is the effect of the assumed changes in respective market risks. This is based on the financial

assets and financial liabilities held at March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022.

Interest rate sensitivity  

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates on that portion of loans and borrowings affected.

With all other variables held constant, the Company's profit before tax is affected through the impact on floating rate borrowings, as follows: 

Particulars

Concentrations of Credit Risk form part of Credit Risk 

If interest rates had been 50 basis points higher / lower and all other variables were held constant, the Company's profit for the year ended March

31, 2023 would decrease / increase by ` Nil (previous year ` Nil). This is mainly attributable to interest rates on variable rate long term borrowings.

(i) Interest rate risk

The Company is exposed to changes in market interest rates due to financing, investing and cash management activities. The Company’s exposure

to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Company’s long-term debt obligations with floating interest rates. The

Company manages its interest rate risk by having a balanced portfolio of fixed and variable rate loans and borrowings.

(b) Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading to a financial loss.

The Company is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities (primarily trade receivables and other financial assets) and from its financing

activities, including deposits with banks and financial institutions, foreign exchange transactions and other financial instruments.

RUPEES / USD – Increase by 

1%RUPEES / USD – Decrease 

by 1%

Considering that the Company operates the port services and provide related infrastructure services, the Company is significantly dependent on

such customers. Out of total revenue, the Company earns ` 18,128.54 lacs of revenue during the year ended March 31, 2023 (previous year `  

17,881.68 lacs) from such port users which constitute 98.10% (previous year 99.80%). Accounts receivable from such customer approximated `  

723.35 lacs as at March 31, 2023 and ` 2,947.80 lacs as at March 31, 2022. A loss of these customers could adversely affect the operating result or

cash flow of the Company.

Sr. 

no.

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date on an individual basis for major clients. In addition, a large number of minor receivables

are grouped into homogenous groups and assessed for impairment collectively. The calculation is based on exchange losses historical data.

Customer credit risk is managed by the Company’s established policy, procedures and control relating to customer credit risk management. Credit

quality of a customer is assessed based on an extensive evaluation and individual credit limits are defined in accordance with this assessment.

The decision of whether and when to execute derivative financial instruments along with its tenure can vary from period to period depending on

market conditions and the relative costs of the instruments. The tenure is linked to the timing of the underlying exposure, with the connection

between the two being regularly monitored. The Company is exposed to losses in the event of non-performance by the counterparties to the

derivative contracts. All derivative contracts are executed with counterparties that, in our judgment, are creditworthy. The outstanding derivatives

are reviewed periodically to ensure that there is no inappropriate concentration of outstanding to any particular counterparty.

Further, all currency and interest risk as identified above is measured on a daily basis by monitoring the mark to market (MTM) of open and hedged

position. The MTM is derived basis underlying market curves on closing basis of relevant instrument quoted on Bloomberg/Reuters. For quarter

ends, the MTM for each derivative instrument outstanding is obtained from respective banks. All gain / loss arising from MTM for open derivative

contracts and gain / loss on settlement / cancellation / roll over of derivative contracts is recorded in statement of profit and loss.

(ii) Foreign currency risk

Exchange rate movements, particularly the United States Dollar (USD) against Indian Rupee (INR), have an impact on the Company’s operating

results. The carrying amounts of the Company’s foreign currency denominated monetary items, being unhedged, are given as a part of note - 33.

The Company is mainly exposed to changes in USD The below table demonstrates the sensitivity to a 1% increase or decrease in the respective

foreign currency rates against INR, with all other variables held constant. The sensitivity analysis is prepared on the net unhedged exposure of the

Company as at the reporting date. 1% represents management’s assessment of reasonably possible change in foreign exchange rate. 

Credit risk from balances with banks and financial institutions is managed by the Company’s treasury department in accordance with the

Company’s policy. Investments of surplus funds are made only with approved counterparties and within credit limits assigned to each counterparty.

Counterparty credit limits are reviewed by the Company’s Board of Directors on an annual basis, and may be updated throughout the year subject

to approval of the Company’s Finance Committee. The limits are set to minimise the concentration of risks and therefore mitigate financial loss

through counterparty’s potential failure to make payments.

Impact on Profit before tax
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 ` in Lacs

Refer Note Less than 1 year 1 to 5 years Over 5 years Total Carrying Amount

12                           -                 7,928.75               11,693.45              19,622.20                19,622.20 

refer note below                 959.56 4859.56 1314.09                 7,133.22                  2,395.38 

17              2,024.42                          -                               -                 2,024.42                  2,024.42 

13                  541.14              2,446.12              16,324.40               19,311.66                  8,613.92 

14              1,486.29                          -                               -                 1,486.29                  1,486.29 

             5,011.41           15,234.43             29,331.94            49,577.79               34,142.21 

12                           -              19,992.02             14,408.94            34,400.96               34,400.96 

refer note below              2,580.07              7,909.70                2,084.35               12,574.12                   1,476.39 

17              1,802.44 -                      -                                      1,802.44                  1,802.44 

13                  514.76              2,330.26               16,982.16              19,827.18                  8,435.39 

14                  317.26                          -                               -                      317.26                      317.26 

             5,214.53           30,231.98             33,475.46           68,921.96              46,432.44 

27 Earnings per share March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

 ` in Lacs  ` in Lacs

(2,446.99)          (1,429.69)               

19,57,06,849     19,20,00,000        

(1.25)                   (0.74)                       

28 Capital Commitments

` in Lacs

Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

156.84* 2,130.42*

Other Commitments

Weighted average number of equity shares

Basic and Diluted earnings per share (in `)

*Excluding for projects under arbitration with concessioning authority (refer note 37).

Trade Payables

Lease Liability

Other Financial Liabilities

Total

Note:

Particulars

As at March 31, 2023

The table below analysis derivative and non-derivative financial liabilities of the Company into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining

period from the reporting date to the contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows.

The Company has an established liquidity risk management framework for managing its short term, medium term and long term funding and

liquidity management requirements. The Company’s exposure to liquidity risk arises primarily from mismatches of the maturities of financial assets

and liabilities. The Company manages the liquidity risk by maintaining adequate funds in cash and cash equivalents. The Company also has

adequate credit facilities agreed with banks to ensure that there is sufficient cash to meet all its normal operating commitments in a timely and

cost-effective manner.

(c) Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in raising funds to meet commitments associated with financial instruments that

are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. Liquidity risk may result from an inability to sell a financial asset quickly at close to its fair

value.

The table has been drawn up based on the undiscounted contractual maturities of the financial liabilities including interest that will be paid on

those liabilities upto the maturity of the instruments, ignoring the  refinancing options available with the Company.

The Company had imported capital goods for its Container Port Terminal Project under the EPCG Scheme at concessional rate of custom duty by

undertaking obligation to export. Future outstanding export obligation under the scheme is ` 71,488.13 lacs (previous year ` 71,488.13 lacs) which

is equivalent to 6 times of duty saved ` 11,914.69 lacs (previous year ` 11,914.69 lacs). As per the existing scheme, the export obligation has to be

completed by FY 2022-23. However, the Company has filed an application to extend the deadline for completion of the said obligation for another 2

years, which is expected to be approved by the authority shortly.

Estimated amount of contracts (net of advances) remaining to be executed on capital account and not

provided for

Loss attributable to equity shareholders of the company

Borrowings

Interest on Borrowings

Trade Payables

Lease Liability

Other Financial Liabilities

Total

As at March 31, 2022

Borrowings

Interest on Borrowings
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29 Ratio Analysis

Sr 

No
Ratio Name March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

%

Variance

Reason

for

variance

1    Current 0.58                    1.38                        -57.75%
Refer note (a) 

below

2    Debt-Equity 0.43                    0.95                       -55.10%
Refer note (b) 

below

3    
Debt Service 

Coverage
1.45                     1.66                       -12.97% -                          

4    
Return on 

Equity
-5.94% -3.86% -53.75%

Refer note (c) 

below

5    
Inventory 

Turnover
Not Applicable Not Applicable -                       

Refer note (d) 

below

6    

Trade 

Receivables 

Turnover

                    9.88                        6.54 51.08%
Refer note (e) 

below

7    
Trade Payable 

Turnover
                    6.92                        6.29 10.01% -                          

8    
Net Capital 

Turnover
                  -31.39                   209.28 -115.00%

Refer note (f) 

below

9    Net Profit -13.24% -7.98% -65.94%
Refer note (g) 

below

10  

Return on 

Capital 

Employed

1.82% 4.37% -58.24%
Refer note (h) 

below

11   
Return on 

Investment
Not Applicable Not Applicable -                       

Refer note (i) 

below

Notes:

30 Segment information

31 Disclosures as required by Ind AS - 19 Employee Benefits

a)

 ` in Lacs

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

2.58 5.57

2.58 5.57

b)

Earnings available for debt service (PAT +

Interest cost + Foreign Exchange Loss or (Gain)

(net) + Depreciation) / Debt Service ( Interest

cost & lease payments + repayment of non

current debt made during the period excluding

refinanced loans))

The company has a defined benefit gratuity plan (funded) and is governed by the payment of Gratuity Act,1972. Under the plan every employee who

has completed at least five year of service gets a gratuity on departure at 15 days salary (last drawn salary) for each completed year of service. The

plan is funded with Life Insurance Corporation of India (LIC) in form of a qualifying insurance policy for future payment of gratuity to the

employees.  

Each year, the management reviews the level of funding in the gratuity fund. Such review includes the assets-liability matching strategy. The

management decides its contribution based on the results of this review. The management aim to keep annual contributions relatively stable at a

level such that no plan deficits (based on valuation performed) will arise.

(g) Increase in Loss resulted in reduction in net profit ratio

Contribution to

The following tables summarise the component of the net benefits expense recognised in the statement of profit and loss account and the funded

status and amounts recognised in the balance sheet for the respective plan.

Total Debt / Shareholder's Equity

Provident Fund

(c) Increase in Loss resulted in reduction of return on equity ratio

Earnings before Interest, Taxes and Forex / 

Average Capital Employed 

The Company is primarily engaged in one business segment, namely developing, operating and maintaining the Port services and related

Infrastructure facilities as determined by chief operational decision maker, in accordance with Ind-AS 108 "Operating Segment".

Considering the inter relationship of various activities of the business, the chief operational decision maker monitors the operating results of its

business segment on overall basis. Segment performance is evaluated based on profit or loss and is measured consistently with profit or loss in the

financial statements.

Net Profit after Taxes / Average Shareholder's 

Equity

Formula 

Current Assets / Current Liabilities

Total Contribution

The company has recognised, in the Statement of Profit and Loss for the current year, an amount of ` 2.58 lacs (previous year ` 5.57 lacs) as

expenses under the following defined contribution plan.

(h) Increase in Loss resulted in reduction in return on capital employed ratio

(a) Reduction in Trade Receivables resulted in reduction of current ratio

Revenue from operation / Average Inventory

Profit After Tax / Revenue from Operation

Revenue from operation / Average Accounts 

Receivable

Operating exp & Other expense / Average Trade 

Payable

Revenue from Operation / Average Working 

Capital 

Income generated from invested funds / 

Average invested funds in treasury instruments

(b) Reduction in Borrowings resulted in improvement of debt equity ratio

(e) Reduction in Trade Receivables resulted in improvement of trade receivables turnover ratio 

(d) As company is into the business of providing port services, inventory turnover ratio is not applicable

(f) Reduction in working capital due to Trade Receivables resulted in reduction of Net Capital Turnover ratio

(i) As there is no investment in treasury instruments in current year, return on investment ratio is not applicable
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c) Gratuity

a) Changes in present value of the defined benefit obligation are as follows:  ` in Lacs

Particulars  March 31, 2023  March 31, 2022 

7.75                      17.32                       

1.20                      1.00                        

0.53                     1.16                         

(0.20)                    0.04                       

(1.35)                     0.95                        

1.13                       (1.29)                       

(0.76)                    (9.82)                       

-                       1.10                         

-                       (2.71)                        

8.31                    7.75                       

b) Changes in fair value of plan assets are as follows:  ` in Lacs

Particulars  March 31, 2023  March 31, 2022 

29.22                   27.38                      

2.01                      1.83                         

-                       -                          

-                       -                          

(0.04)                    -                          

-                       -                          

31.19                   29.22                    

c) Net asset/(liability) recognised in the balance sheet  ` in Lacs

Particulars  March 31, 2023  March 31, 2022 

8.31                      7.75                         

31.19                    29.22                      

22.88                   21.47                       

22.88                   21.47                       

                         -   -                          

d) Expense recognised in the statement of profit and loss for the year  ` in Lacs

Particulars  March 31, 2023  March 31, 2022 

Current service cost 1.20                      1.00                        

Net Interest cost on benefit obligation (1.48)                    (0.67)                       

Less: Capitalised during the year -                       -                          

Total Expenses included in employee benefits expense (0.28)                  0.33                      

e) Recognised in the other comprehensive income for the year  ` in Lacs

Particulars  March 31, 2023  March 31, 2022 

                    (0.20)                         0.04 

                     (1.35)                         0.95 

                       1.13                         (1.29)

                     0.04                              -   

                   (0.38)                      (0.30)

f) Maturity profile of Defined Benefit Obligation

Particulars  March 31, 2023  March 31, 2022 

4 years 8 years

g) Sensitivity Analysis Method

Quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumption is as below

Increase/(decrease) on present value of defined benefits obligation at the end of the year

Particulars

1% Increase 1% Decrease 1% Increase 1% Decrease

 ` in Lacs  ` in Lacs  ` in Lacs  ` in Lacs

                   (0.37)                       0.40                      (0.57)                         0.64 

Present value of the defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the year

Current service cost

The sensitivity analysis below have been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the assumptions occurring at the end of the

reporting period, while holding all other assumptions constant.

Fair value of plan assets at the beginning of the year

Sensitivity level

Impact on defined benefit obligations

Discount rate

 - change in demographic assumptions

Net (liability)/asset - Non-current

Benefits paid

Liability Transfer in

Liability Transfer out

Present value of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the year

Investment income

Contributions by employer

Interest cost

Re-measurement (or Actuarial) (gain) / loss arising from:

Benefits paid

Return on plan assets , excluding amount recognised in net interest expense

Acquisition Adjustment (Transfer (Out))

Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year

Net (liability)/asset - Current

Present value of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the year

Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year

Amount recognised in the balance sheet

 - change in financial assumptions

Assumptions

 - experience variance

Weighted average duration (based on discounted cashflows)

 - change in demographic assumptions

Actuarial (gain)/losses arising from

Recognised in comprehensive income

 March 31, 2023 

Return on plan assets, excluding amount recognised in net interest expense

 March 31, 2022 

 - change in financial assumptions

 - experience variance
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Particulars

1% Increase 1% Decrease 1% Increase 1% Decrease

 ` in Lacs  ` in Lacs  ` in Lacs  ` in Lacs

                    0.39                       (0.37)                       0.62                        (0.56)

Particulars

50% Increase 50% Decrease 50% Increase 50% Decrease

 ` in Lacs  ` in Lacs  ` in Lacs  ` in Lacs

                    (0.11)                        0.20                     (0.38)                         0.56 

Particulars

10% Increase 10% Decrease 10% Increase 10% Decrease

 ` in Lacs  ` in Lacs  ` in Lacs  ` in Lacs

                         -                               -                              -                                -   

h) Asset-Liability Matching Strategies

i) The major categories of plan assets as a percentage of the fair value of total plan assets are as follows:

Particulars  March 31, 2023  March 31, 2022 

100% 100%

* As the gratuity fund is managed by insurance company, details of fund invested by insurer are not available with company.

j) The principle assumptions used in determining gratuity obligations are as follows:

Particulars  March 31, 2023  March 31, 2022 

7.50% 6.90%

8.50% 10.00%

India Assured 

Lives Mortality 

2012-14

India Assured 

Lives Mortality 

2012-14

18.20% 9.11%

k) The expected cash flows of defined benefit Obligation over future periods (Valued on Undiscounted Basis)

 ` in Lacs

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

1.59 0.63

4.75 2.52

5.09 3.22

0.93 8.04

12.35 14.41

The Company expect to contribute ` Nil to the gratuity fund in the financial year 2023-24 (previous year ` Nil).

The estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, take account of inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors,

such as supply and demand in the employment market.

However, being a cash accumulation plan, the duration of assets is shorter compared to the duration of liabilities. Thus, the Company is exposed to

movement in interest rate (in particular, the significant fall in interest rates, which should result in a increase in liability without corresponding

increase in the asset).

Investments with insurer*

Discount rate

Impact on defined benefit obligations

Attrition rate

 March 31, 2022 

Assumptions

Sensitivity level

 March 31, 2022 

Assumptions

Sensitivity level

 March 31, 2023 

Mortality rate

The overall expected rate of return on assets is determined based on the market prices prevailing on that date, applicable to the period over which

the obligation is to be settled. There has been significant change in expected rate of return on assets due to change in the market scenario.

Between 2 and 5 years 

Impact on defined benefit obligations

Total Expected Payments 

Between 6 and 10 years 

Impact on defined benefit obligations

 March 31, 2022 

Beyond 10 years 

Sensitivity level

Rate of escalation in salary (per annum)

Mortality

Attrition rate

Assumptions Salary Growth rate

 March 31, 2023 

The Company has purchased insurance policy, which is basically a year-on-year cash accumulation plan in which the interest rate is declared on

yearly basis and is guaranteed for a period of one year. The insurance company, as part of the policy rules, makes payment of all gratuity outgoes

happening during the year (subject to sufficiency of funds under the policy).The policy, thus, mitigates the liquidity risk. 

Within the next 12 months (next annual reporting period)

Particulars

 March 31, 2023 
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32

 ` in Lacs

Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Principal 5.26                      71.39                       

Interest Nil Nil

2 Nil Nil

3 Nil Nil

4 Nil Nil

5 Nil Nil

33 Derivative instruments and unhedged foreign currency exposure

The details of foreign currency exposures those are not hedged by a derivative instrument or otherwise are as under:

Amount Foreign Currency Amount Foreign Currency

 ` in Lacs In Million  ` in Lacs In Million

230.19                 USD 0.28 Nil Nil

Closing rates as at March 31, 2023: Closing rates as at March 31, 2022:

INR / USD = ` 82.17 INR / USD = ` 75.79

34

9) Hetal Acharya-Company Secretary (upto September 1, 2022)

8) Subash Sahoo-Chief Financial Officer (w.e.f. October 27, 2022)

Entities over which (i) Key Management Personnel and their relatives 

& (ii) entities having significant influence over the Company have 

control or are under significant influence through voting powers

1) G.J.Rao-Managing Director (upto November 03, 2021)

7) Kunjal Mehta-Chief Financial Officer (upto April 30, 2022)

10) Darshita Prajapati-Company Secretary (w.e.f. January 30, 2023)

Holding Company

Mundra Solar Energy Ltd

Adani Krishnapatnam Port Ltd

Mundra Solar Private Ltd

Key Managerial Personnel

3) Karan Adani-Director (upto May 19, 2021)

5) Jai Singh Khurana-Managing Director (w.e.f. November 03, 2021)

Marine Infrastructure Developer Private Limited

The Dhamra Port Company Limited

Adani Ports and Special Economic Zone Limited

Information required to be furnished as per Section 22 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (MSMED Act) and

Schedule III of the Companies Act, 2013 for the year ended March 31, 2023. This information has been determined to the extent such parties have

been identified on the basis of information available with the Company and relied upon by auditors.

Particulars

Fellow Subsidiaries

Sr 

No

Nature of Relationship Name of the Company

As at March 31, 2022

The amount of further interest remaining due and   payable even in the succeeding years, until such 

date  when the interest dues as above are actually paid to the small enterprise for the purpose of 

disallowance as a deductible expenditure under section 23 of the MSMED Act 2006.

6) Chitra Bhatnagar-Independent Director

Adani Enterprise Limited

Related Party Disclosures

Adani Logistics Limited

(i)The names of the related parties and nature of the relationships where control exists are disclosed irrespective of whether or not there have

been transactions between the related parties. For others, the names and the nature of relationships is disclosed only when the transactions are

entered into by the Company with the related parties during the existence of the related party relationship.

4) Capt Unmesh Abhyankar-Director (w.e.f. May 19, 2021)

(ii) Aggregate of transactions and closing balances for the year ended with these parties have been given below.

2) Sandeep Mehta-Director (upto November 03, 2021)

Notes:

The Management has identified the following entities and individuals as related parties of the Company for the period ended on March 31, 2023 for

the purposes of reporting as per Ind AS 24 – Related Party Disclosures, which are as under:

Nature

As at March 31, 2023

Trade Payables and Other Liabilities

Principal amount and interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of each 

accounting year.

1

The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of   section 16, of the Micro Small and Medium 

Enterprise Development Act, 2006 along with the amounts of the payment made  to the supplier 

beyond the appointed day during each accounting year.

The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which have been 

paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) but   without adding the interest specified under 

Micro Small and Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006.

The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year; and
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(A) Transactions with Related Party ` in Lacs

No Year Ended

March 31, 2023

Year Ended

March 31, 2022

1 2,446.76              2,745.12                  

68.54                   6.63                         

-                        52.42                       

115.14                   5.63                         

3 11,870.00             8,706.45                 

4 26,648.76            12,134.99                

5 34.98                   -                          

6 293.98                 -                          

7 12,300.00            -                          

8 1.20                       1.20                         

(B) Balances with Related Party ` in Lacs

No  As at March 31, 

2023

 As at 

March 31, 2022

1 0.03                      34.08                      

-                        4.27                         

12.68                    -                          

16.73                     -                          

2 0.27                      0.27                         

3 19,622.20             34,400.96              

4 2,395.38               1,476.39                  

5 50,000.00           50,000.00             

Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties

35

` in Lacs

 March 31, 2023  March 31, 2022 

             19,622.20               34,400.96 

                 279.68                        78.59 

             19,342.52                 34,322.37 

           46,080.94                36,276.95 

            65,423.46                70,599.32 

29.57% 48.62%

Loans Taken

Other Entity*

Borrowings 

The Dhamra Port Company Ltd

Adani Logistics Limited

Adani Enterprises Ltd

Chitra Bhatnagar

Purchase of Asset

Holding Company

Adani Ports and Special Economic 

Zone Ltd

Trade Payable (including 

provisions)

Adani Krishnapatnam Port 

Company Ltd

Adani Ports and Special Economic 

Zone Ltd

Key Managerial Personnel and 

Their Relatives

Other Financial & Non-

Financial Assets

Fellow Subsidiary

Holding Company

Adani Ports and Special Economic 

Zone Ltd

Name of Related PartyHead Relationship

Director Sitting Fees

Holding Company

Adani Ports and Special Economic 

Zone Ltd

* Entities over which (i) Key Management Personnel and their relatives & (ii) entities having significant influence over the Company have control or 

are under significant influence through voting powers.

Outstanding balances of related parties at the year-end are unsecured and settlement occurs in cash. There have been no guarantees provided or

received for any related party receivables or payables. For the period ended March 31, 2023, the Company has not recorded any impairment of

receivables relating to amounts owed by related parties. This assessment is undertaken each financial year through examining the financial

position of the related party and the market in which the related party operates.

For the purposes of the company’s capital management, capital includes issued capital and all other equity reserves. The primary objective of the

company’s capital management is to maximize shareholder value. The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in the light of

changes in economic environment and the requirements of the financial covenants.

Total Borrowings (refer note 12)

Less: Cash and Cash Equivalents (refer note 9)

Adani Ports and Special Economic 

Zone Ltd

Perpetual Securities

Capital Management

Net debt (A)

Total Equity (B)

Total Equity and net debt (C=A+B)

Gearing ratio (A / C)

In order to achieve this overall objective, the Company's capital management, amongst other things, aims to ensure that it meets financial

covenants attached to the interest-bearing loans and borrowings that define capital structure requirements. Breaches in meeting the financial

covenants would permit the bank to immediately call loans and borrowings. There have been no breaches in the financial covenants of any interest-

bearing loans and borrowing in the current period. 

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the years ended March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022. 

Interest accrued on 

borrowings

Particulars

Mundra Solar Private Ltd

The Company monitors capital using gearing ratio, which is net debt (total debt less cash and cash equivalents) divided by total capital plus net 

debt.

Adani Ports and Special Economic 

Zone Ltd

Other Entity* Mundra Solar Energy Ltd

Fellow Subsidiary

Other Entity*

Holding Company

Issue of Equity Shares Holding Company Adani Ports and Special Economic 

Zone Ltd

Holding Company

Holding Company

Fellow Subsidiary

Adani Ports and Special Economic 

Zone Ltd

Purchase of Asset

Holding Company

Fellow Subsidiary

Other Entity*

Loans Repaid

2

Head

Services Availed (including 

reimbursement of expenses)

Adani Logistics Ltd

Marine Infrastructure Developer 

Pvt Ltd

Adani Enterprises Ltd

Interest Expense 

Relationship Name of Related Party
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` in Lacs

Balance as at 

April 01, 2022

Cash Flows Foreign 

Exchange

 Movement

Charge to the 

statement of 

profit and loss 

during the period

Other Changes Balance as at

 March 31, 2023

34,400.96          (14,778.76)                                   -                               -                              -                  19,622.20 

1,476.39              (1,527.77)                                      -                   3,081.24 (634.48)                                2,395.38 

8,435.39             (455.96)                                       -                               -   634.48                                 8,613.92 

           44,312.74         (16,762.49)                         -                 3,081.24                          -                30,631.50 

` in Lacs

Balance as at 

April 01, 2021

Cash Flows Foreign 

Exchange

 Movement

Charge to the 

statement of 

profit and loss 

during the period

Other Changes Balance as at

 March 31, 2022

37,829.50           (3,428.54)                                    -                               -                              -                 34,400.96 

1,677.79               (2,946.52)                                    -                   3,370.15                 (625.03)                   1,476.39 

8,267.17               (456.81)                                        -                               -                    625.03                  8,435.39 

           47,774.46            (6,831.87)                         -                  3,370.15                          -                 44,312.74 
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For such assessment of impairment, the Company has considered approved budget for estimates pertaining to FY 2023-24 and for the subsequent

periods, cargo growth of 5% and Discounting rate of 12.5% has been applied.

As at March 31, 2023, the Company has incurred net loss of ₹ 2,446.61 lacs (net loss of ₹ 1,429.39 lacs as at March 31, 2022 ) and has accumulated

losses of ₹ 35,419.06 lacs excluding perpetual debt (March 31, 2022 ₹ 32,923.05 lacs) which has resulted in erosion of the Company’s net worth.

This being an infrastructure project having long gestation period, the management expects that there will be significant increase in the operations

of the Company that will lead to improved cash flows and long term sustainability. With the current level of operations and expected cash flow in

next year, the company expects to meet the operational requirements as they arise and to meet its liabilities as and when they fall due. 

Further, Adani Ports and Special Economic Zone Limited, the Parent Company has undertaken to provide financial support as necessary, to enable

the company to meet the operational requirements. Accordingly, the financial statements have been prepared on a 'going concern basis'.

Disclosure with regards to changes in liabilities arising from Financing Activities as set out in Ind AS 7 - Statement of Cash Flows

The Company has determined the recoverable amounts of Property, Plant & Equipment and Intangible Assets under Ind AS 36, Impairment of

Assets, based on the estimates relating to cargo traffic, port tariffs, inflation, discount rates etc. considering plans for future long term contracts

with shipping lines. On a careful evaluation of the aforesaid factors, the Company has concluded that the recoverable amounts of the Property,

Plant & Equipment is significantly higher than their carrying amounts as at March 31, 2023 and no provision for impairment in respect of these

Property, Plant & Equipment is considered necessary at this stage.

Contingent liabilities not provided for

Disclosure of changes in liabilities arising from financing activities, including both changes arising from cash flows and non-cash changes (such as

foreign exchange gains or losses) is as under:

Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities

Total 

Interest Accrued but not due on 

Borrowings

Lease Liabilities

On September 23, 2021 DGFT issued a notification, which restricts the Company’s eligibility for SEIS benefits and also restricts the benefit up to ` 

500.00 lacs per entity for FY 2019-20, pursuant to which the SEIS receivable amounting to ` 219.66 lacs pertaining to FY 2019-20 has been

written off during the previous year and is shown as exceptional item. However, the Company has contested the legality and retrospective

application of the said notification. 

Particulars

Inter Corporate Deposit

Interest Accrued but not due on 

Borrowings

Lease Liabilities

During the financial year ended on March 31, 2021, the company has received notice from Kamarajar Port Limited (“KPL”) relating to delay in

completion of a milestone of Phase II, levying liquidated damages of ` 29.60 crore. The company sought for injunction from Hon’ble High Court of

Madras and as per its direction, initiated arbitration and deposited ` 10.00 crore without prejudice and subject to outcome of arbitration and other

such remedies available in the concession agreement. The matter is under arbitration and both parties have appointed arbitrators as well as the

presiding arbitrator as referred by the Hon’ble High Court of Madras. The management is confident that there should be no such levy and has

contested the same attributing the delay in Phase II commencement were due to reasons beyond control of the company including but not limited

to delays in Phase I Project (including Force Majeure events of Cyclone Vardha), delay by the Concessioning Authority in appointing an Independent

Engineer for Phase II Project, allocation of land, issuance of Phase I completion certificate, etc. Considering above, no provision of the liquidated

damages claimed by KPL has been considered necessary at this stage. Both the parties have filed the claim with arbitrators and the matter is

currently under arbitration. The company could not achieve the Minimum Guaranteed Tonnage as per concession agreement on account of various

force majeure events including reasons attributable to KPL which was also contested as part of ongoing arbitration.

Inter Corporate Deposit

Particulars

Total 
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(ii) 

(iii)

(iv)

(v)
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For and on behalf of Board of Directors of

Adani Ennore Container Terminal Private Limited

Capt Unmesh Abhyankar Jai Khurana

Director Managing Director

DIN: 03040812 DIN: 05140233

Subash Sahoo Darshita Prajapati

Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Place: Ahmedabad

Date: May 01, 2023

Place: Ahmedabad

Date: May 01, 2023

The accompanying notes form an integral part of financial statements

As per our report of even date

For Dharmesh Parikh & Co. LLP

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No.: 112054W/ W100725

Harsh Parikh

The amendments to standards that are issued, but not yet effective, up to the date of issuance of the Company's financial statements are disclosed

below. The Company intends to adopt these standards, if applicable, as and when they become effective. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA)

has notified certain amendments to Ind AS, through Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2023 on 31st March, 2023. These

amendments maintain convergence with IFRS by incorporating amendments issued by International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) into Ind AS

and has amended the following standards:

1. Ind AS 101 - First-time adoption of Ind AS 

2. Ind AS 102 - Share Based Payment

3. Ind AS 103 – Business Combinations

4. Ind AS 107 – Financial Instruments - Disclosures

5. Ind AS 109 – Financial Instruments

6. Ind AS 115 – Revenue from Contracts with Customers

7. Ind AS 1 – Presentation of Financial Statements

8. Ind AS 8 - Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors

9. Ind AS 12 - Income Taxes

10. Ind AS 34 – Interim Financial Reporting

These amendments shall come into force with effect from April 01, 2023.

The Company is assessing the potential effect of the amendments on its financial statements. The Company will adopt these amendments, if

applicable, from applicability date.

Partner

Membership No. 194284

The Company evaluates events and transactions that occur subsequent to the balance sheet date but prior to the financial statements to

determine the necessity for recognition and/or reporting of any of these events and transactions in the financial statements. As of May 01, 2023,

there were no subsequent events to be recognized or reported that are not already disclosed.

The Code on Wages, 2019 and Code of Social Security, 2020 (“the Codes”) relating to employee compensation and post-employment benefits that

received Presidential assent and the related rules thereof for quantifying the financial impact have not been notified. The Company will assess the

impact of the Codes when the rules are notified and will record any related impact in the period the Codes become effective.

Events occuring after the balance sheet date

Statutory Information

The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities Intermediaries) with the

understanding that the Intermediary shall:

(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (Ultimate

Beneficiaries) or

(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

The Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding

(whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall:

(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party

(Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

Based on the information available with the Company, there are no transactions with struck off companies.

The Company does not have any benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Company for holding any benami 

property.

The Company was not required to file quarterly statement/returns of current assets with the banks or financial institutions w.r.t. secured working 

capital.

Standards issued but not effective:

During the quarter ended March 31, 2023, a short seller had issued a report making allegations involving Adani Group companies including APSEZ

Group, which have been duly denied by Adani Group. To uphold the principles of good governance, Adani Group had undertaken review of

transactions referred in the short seller’s report (including that of the Company) through an independent law firm. The report confirms the

Company’s compliance of applicable laws and regulations.

Further, in context of the short seller’s report, there is petition filed in the Hon’ble Supreme Court, and SEBI is examining compliance of laws and

regulations by conducting inquires to the Group’s listed companies. Based on the foregoing and pending outcome of the investigations mentioned

above, the financial statements do not carry any adjustments.


